
1 
 

Law Enforcement & Public Safety Committee 
Special Meeting Minutes 

 
DATE & TIME: March 25, 2019 – 6:45 PM 
LOCATION: KL Binder Library, 6th Floor, County Office Building 

     PRESIDING OFFICER: Chairwoman Lynn Eckert 
LEGISLATIVE STAFF: Jay Mahler, Deputy Clerk  
PRESENT: Legislators Bartels (left at 7:40 PM), Collins, Haynes & Ronk 
ABSENT:   Legislator Heppner    
QUORUM PRESENT: Yes 
 
OTHER ATTENDEES: Andrew Kossover – UC Public Defender, Cliff Owens – UC 
Assistant District Attorney, Director Schmidt – UC Probation, Sheriff Figueroa, Under Sheriff 
Benjamin, UCSEA President Matthew Russell, UCSEA Vice President Charles Swacuri – UC 
Sheriff’s Office, Mr. Tom Kadgen – League of Women Voters 
 
Chairwoman Eckert called the meeting to order at 6:52 PM.  
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Chairwoman Eckert thanked Public Defender Kossover for attending the meeting and stated that he 
was asked to attend to provide a different perspective on a number of the concerns with proposed 
criminal justice reforms highlighted by District Attorney Carnright at the committee’s regular meeting 
on March 4th. She reminded the members that District Attorney Carnright presented his concerns with 
bail reform, and changes to speedy trial and discovery provisions proposed for inclusion in the NYS 
Budget.  
 
Chairwoman Eckert turned the meeting over to Mr. Kossover. Mr. Kossover introduced himself, 
thanked the members for the opportunity to speak and informed them that he has served as the Ulster 
County Public Defender since 2000. He added that he is quite familiar with the proposals in Albany 
through his service as the Chair of the New York State Association of Criminal Defense Lawyers.  
 
He provided the members with materials (appended to these minutes) which included: a compilation 
of articles on Criminal Justice Reform, information from the Repeal the Blindfold Coalition, a NYS 
Association of Criminal Defense Lawyers document supporting Discovery Reform, and a draft 
Memorializing Resolution calling on the NYS Legislature to overhaul pretrial laws. He added that a 
number of counties in New York have adopted similar memorializing resolutions.  
 
He informed the members that there are a number of criminal justice reform measures being discussed 
in Albany in addition to the “big three” (Bail Reform, Discovery Reforms and Speedy Trail Reforms) 
such as solitary confinement rules and regulations and parole reforms.  
 
Mr. Kossover stated that the current bail system is two tiered, adding that one tier is represented by 
individuals with money and the other tier is represented by those without. He explained that the 
current system has a disproportionately negative effect on people of color and poorer people. He 
informed the members that the elimination of cash bail will require an increase of pretrial services, 
which the county currently manages through the Probation Department. He advised the members that 
the county should not experience an increase in cases of people not appearing for court dates, as there 



2 
 

have been numerous studies demonstrating that most cases of non-appearance are because people 
simply forget. He added that Public Defenders have increased notification systems to help address 
that. He explained that District Attorneys are not supportive of the elimination of cash bail. He 
informed the members that there is language in the law to give judges discretion in instances where a 
specific threat to a victim may be present; such as in cases of domestic violence.  
 
Mr. Kossover stated that his primary issue is with discovery. He explained that the current system 
provides opportunities for District Attorneys to withhold or not provide evidence until days before 
trials. Mr. Kossover added that proposed discovery reforms will require names of victims and 
witnesses be provided to the defense. He added that there has long been a disagreement between 
Public Defenders and District Attorneys about the risks associated with divulging names of victims or 
witness. He added that judges have the ability to grant protective orders to withhold victim and 
witness names, and attorneys can draft reports that are indicated as “For Attorney’s Eyes Only.” He 
informed the members that 48 other states have the same form of discovery laws as those now being 
proposed in New York.  
 
He informed the members that he considers proposed reforms to speedy trial as common sense 
changes. He explained that everyone under the law is entitled to a speedy trail; essentially six months 
for a felony and ninety days for a misdemeanor. He explained that the clock stops once the District 
Attorney answers that they are “ready for trial.” The proposed reform would eliminate the readiness 
provision. He advised the members that he has spoken to a number of former prosecutors who are in 
favor of the discovery reform bills, and asked the members if they had any questions. 
 
Legislator Ronk stated that District Attorney Carnright advised the members that proposed changes to 
discovery laws could prevent him from trying cases when there are unavoidable delays in receiving 
results from overextended state crime labs. Mr. Kossover responded that the statute provides 
accommodations for delays caused by things like crime labs.  
 
Mr. Owens from the District Attorney’s Office stated that judges and lawyers alike consider risk of 
flight as well as an assessment of dangerousness when considering bail. Mr. Kossover stated that most 
other states consider dangerousness, or community safety, when they set bail. He added that, because 
of the law’s presumption of innocence, judges cannot consider dangerousness when setting bail.  
 
Sheriff Figueroa stated that law enforcement has concerns about reforms to bail taking away a judge’s 
ability to use their knowledge of an individual to set reasonable bail amounts and to consider the safety 
of the community. The members discussed instances where a violent person could be released and 
immediately commit another crime, especially in instances of domestic violence. Mr. Kossover stated 
that the county will likely need to increase electronic monitoring and other pre-trial services. Legislator 
Ronk commented that, similar to state enactment of Raise the Age, there will be little financial 
assistance from the state.  
 
Director Schmidt sated that the Department of Probation does not have the ability to instantaneously 
put someone on electronic monitoring. She added that it is not a fool proof method, especially in a 
county the size of Ulster. She advised the members that there are a number of areas in the county that 
do not have cell service, which limits the electronic monitoring abilities. She reported that some larger 
counties have staff dedicated solely to issuing electronic monitoring equipment, but Ulster does not 
have the volume of cases that would justify a full-time staff member.  



3 
 

 
Chairwoman Bartels asked if the Washington DC cashless bail procedure, which has been in place for 
a while, was reviewed. Mr. Kossover responded that Washington DC as well as laws in California, 
New Jersey, Colorado and others were considered when drafting the new legislation. He 
acknowledged that nothing is fool proof, but added that should not prevent laws being reformed to 
serve the greater good.  
 
Sheriff Figueroa commented that his office does not have the staff to act as “warrant squads” to find 
individuals who do not appear for court dates.  
 
Chairwoman Eckert explained that after hearing from District Attorney Carnright the members were 
considering reaching out to state lawmakers as a committee to express their support or opposition to 
the criminal justice reform proposals. She added that the impetus behind inviting Mr. Kossover was to 
hear another perspective on the proposed criminal justice reform before deciding what position the 
committee might take and whether or not to reach out to lawmakers.   
 
Chairwoman Eckert stated that, after hearing from the District Attorney, Sheriff and Public Defender, 
she remained concerned about effects of the reforms on due process for both the prosecution and 
defense, as well as the characterization of some of the reforms as being anti-victim. She asked Mr. 
Kossover if he felt the reforms still offered an opportunity to both the prosecution and defense for 
true due process. Mr. Owens commented that the District Attorney’s Office remains concerned with 
effects of the proposed reforms to bail and discovery on the public and victim’s safety. Discussion 
ensued on the differences of opinion from the law enforcement and defense perspectives.  
 
Mr. Kossover advised the members that the proposed reforms were debated and drafted by a State 
Bar and Task Force made up of prosecutors, defense attorneys, and judges. He emphasized that the 
reforms were developed with a focus on justice and striking a balance between law enforcement and 
individual rights.  
 
Sheriff Figueroa stated that he has concerns about protecting witnesses with the proposed bail 
reforms. He added that witness intimidation is of particular concern. Legislator Haynes stated that 
these reforms are not new and have been introduced in Albany for many years. She added that the 
recent change in power of the state legislature is why the proposals are likely to be adopted. She 
commented that she did not believe that these reforms should part of the budget. Mr. Kossover stated 
that neither the Senate or Assembly felt the reforms should be a part of the budget. She expressed her 
concern about law enforcement’s ability to conduct a sufficient background checks of an individual 
after arrest but before required release if bail is eliminated.  
 
Legislator Ronk stated that District Attorney’s probably agree with seventy percent of the proposed 
reforms to discovery and speedy trial. He added that he could understand, and most likely support the 
discovery and speedy trail reforms. He commented that he felt victims were not being given enough 
consideration in the bail reform proposals. Mr. Kossover stated that advancements in technology have 
offered many options for pre-trial monitoring. Director Schmidt advised the members that Ulster 
County has a crime victims program and commended the members for giving so much consideration 
to victims. She added that Crime Victim’s Rights Week begins in two weeks and encouraged the 
members to participate in some of the activities the county will be offering.  
 



4 
 

Director Schmidt advised the members that the Probation Department currently works with staff at 
the Public Defender’s Office to coordinate pretrial services, defender based advocacy and alternatives 
to incarceration programming, including mental health and rehabilitation services. She added that the 
enactment of bail reform proposals this year will have a measurable effect on the volume of cases her 
department will be responsible for. The members briefly discussed the overwhelming need for an 
increase in mental health services across the state and country.  
 
Chairwoman Eckert commented that one of the disheartening aspects of the criminal justice system 
are racial and class disparities. She asked if Mr. Kossover felt the proposed reforms will do anything to 
address those disparities. Mr. Kossover responded that issue was one of the foundation blocks of the 
enactment of the proposed reforms. He added that, unfortunately, there are latent racial inequities in 
the court system. Chairwoman Eckert expressed her hope that the reforms will begin to level the 
playing field in the criminal justice system.  
 
Legislator Ronk stated that he was not ready to reach out to state lawmakers against the reforms after 
hearing from District Attorney Carnright earlier in the month, and was not ready to reach out in 
support at this time. He thanked Mr. Kossover for making the time to speak to the committee. He 
added that leaders in both the Senate and Assembly have stated that they were not supportive of 
including the measures in the budget. Mr. Kossover commented that the Governor was working hard 
to have the measure included but agreed with Legislator Ronk that hastily crafted legislation can pose 
many problems.  
 
The members thanked Mr. Kossover, Sheriff Figueroa and Mr. Carnright for taking the time to discuss 
and provide background on the topic. Mr. Kossover expressed his gratitude for the members’ interest  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Chairwoman Eckert advised the members that the next regular meeting was scheduled for April 1st 
and asked if there was any other business, and hearing none;  
 
Adjournment 
 
Motion Made By:  Legislator Ronk 
Motion Seconded By: Legislator Haynes 
No. of Votes in Favor: 4 
No. of Votes Against: 0 
 
TIME:   8:23 PM 

 
Respectfully submitted: Jay Mahler, Deputy Clerk 
Minutes Approved: May 6, 2019 


















































	LEPS 03. Minutes March 25, 2019 Special Meeting
	LOCATION: KL Binder Library, 6th Floor, County Office Building

	3.25.19 meeting - PD Kossover Criminal Justice Reform Articles
	3.25.19 meeting - PD Kossover Repeal The Blindfold Coalition Discovery for Justice Reform Act
	3.25.19 meeting- PD Kossover NYS Assoc. of Criminal Defense Lawyers Discovery Reform support
	3.25.19 meeting - PD Kossover Draft Memorializing Resolution

